THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AR EEAR A A

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock code: 8119)

FINAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this announcement.

This Announcement, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Thiz Technology Group Limited collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to Thiz Technology Group Limited.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:
1. the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
2. there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading, and
3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded
on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcement” page of GEM website at

www.hkgem.com for at least 7 days from the date of its posting and on the Company’s website at
www.thizgroup.com.

*  For identification purposes only
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Corporate Information
TEER

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 17 August 2012)
Ms. Li Zhe (Resigned on 17 August 2012)

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Share Registrar
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
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Hong Kong
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Principal Banker
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
82-84 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Auditor
BDO Limited

25th Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance Officer
Mr. Lin En Fu

Audit Committee
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 17 August 2012)
Ms. Li Zhe (Resigned on 17 August 2012)

Company Secretary and Financial Controller
Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Company Website

www.thizgroup.com

General Information

Listing . Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Listing Date 127 July 2001

Nominal Value . HK$0.1 per share

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange . 8119

Reuters : 8119.HK

Bloomberg : 8119 HK
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEER W

Business Review

In the past year, domestic demand has slowed down and overseas market has also
shrunk. There was also the pressure from the appreciation of Renminbi. Despite the
effort of the management in adjusting management strategy to adapt to changing
market needs and control costs to safeguard the Company’s profitability, the Group
was still affected by overall poor performance in the international macroeconomy and
rise in costs, major revenue from the trading business has dropped significantly and
the Group currently suffers loss.

Prospects

In the future, in order to respond to the change in market demand, the Group will pay
attention to the changing market needs and improve competitiveness in terms of its
products and business. The Group will actively adjust the structure of products and
accelerate introduction of new generations of products. The Group will also constantly
strive to develop new markets and enhance profit. Meanwhile, the Group will improve
its management mechanism continuously to stimulate the motivation and creativity
of staff and increase efficiency and effectiveness to ensure steady development. The
Group will also actively seek acquisition and investment opportunities to accelerate
expansion as in the past.

Financial Review

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to HK$784,000 (2012:
HK$15,955,000). During the year, loss before taxation for the year was
HK$7,782,000, compared to HK$9,020,000 in the corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit for the Group decreased from HK$1,403,000 in 2012 to HK$500,000
in 2013, while the gross profit margin increased from 9% to 64% due to reduction of
provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories and trading income.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$7,217,000 (2012: HK$9,606,000).
Compared to last year, the operating costs have decreased by 25%.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company and loss per share for the year were
HK$7,771,000 (2012: HK$8,752,000) and HKO.5 cents (2012: HKO.5 cents)
respectively.

Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 March 2013, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$10,507,000
(2012: HK$13,312,000). Current assets amounted to HK$10,483,000 (2012:
HK$13,237,000), of which HK$9,867,000 (2012: HK$12,192,000) were cash and
bank deposits. Current liabilities of HK$10,761,000 (2012: HK$16,929,000) mainly
comprised of trade payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to the spouse
of a director and loan. Current ratio of the Group was 1.0 (2012: 0.8) and gearing ratio
of the Group was (1.4) (2012: (1.9)) representing the Group’s borrowings divided by total
equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure (continued)

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$278,000 (2012: HK$3,692,000).

On 14 May 2013, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition agreement
with an independent third party (the “Vendor”) pursuant to which the subsidiary
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in a company incorporated in
the Biritish Virgin Islands (the “Target Company”) owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). The consideration for the Proposed Acquisition will be satisfied by the
issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the nominal
value of HK$0.1 each to the Vendor. The Target Company has a wholly-owned
subsidiary in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) which is principally engaged
in property investment in Shanghai, the PRC. Details of the Proposed Acquisition were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 May 2013.

On 13 June 2013, the Group got an additional shareholder loan for HK$9,000,000.

The Group intends to use the loan for improving the working capital and exploring new
business opportunities.

Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s main operations are in the PRC and Taiwan and its income and

expenses are transacted in RMB, USD and NT$ respectively. Accordingly, it has no
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had no charge or pledge of assets. Details of
contingent liabilities are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no material capital commitment.

Management and employees

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 26 employees, including the Directors of the
Company. Salaries of employees are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and year end bonuses are granted at the end of each calendar year. Other
employees’ benefits include mandatory provident fund, medical cover and other
insurance.
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Biographical Details of Directors
BEEHN

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 58, is an Executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing, in particular in
electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong was the Chairman of Association of
Electronic Components Industry of Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of
Industrial Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma and a MBA
of the University of South Australia.

Mr. Lin En Fu

Mr. Lin En Fu, aged 57, is currently the Chief Operational Officer of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Economics of the University of Kansas and had served for
First Commercial Bank of Taiwan for 21 years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, aged 59, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had been involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He was the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. in 1999. Besides, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of United
Microelectronics Corporation from 1983 to 2001, a semi-conductor manufacturer
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Taiwan, and had been working
there for about 18 years.

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen, aged 48, graduated from the department of Broadcasting and TV
of Shih Hsin University in Taiwan. She was the executive secretary of Franklin Advisors
Inc. and subsequently worked as the Vice President of Le Kao Co., Ltd. Ms. Hsieh has
extensive experience in the field of administration and management.

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, aged 45, graduated with a Master Degree in Management from
Yuan Ze University in Taiwan. She was the assistant to president of Lung Hwa
Electronics Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2003, and subsequently the Vice President of Chi
Fu Jong Hua Co., Ltd. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in the field of public relations
and consultancy.
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Mr. Chu Meng Chi, aged 48. He obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Taiwan National Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Chu has over 20
years’ experience in the field of corporate administration and financial investment.

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Ms. Chan Mei Sze, aged 48, is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has over 23 years’ accounting and finance experience in various
industries in Hong Kong.

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, aged 42, has a master degree from the New York Institute of
Technology-Vancouver in Canada. She has over 20 years’ management experience
in various industries.

EEEHT ()

BIUFHNTES

KREHEE
RBEFLLE 4857 - WERBBREYTILRBLERTEEL
B - REAERATERERBENHERE — +FELR -

RERLE
RERLL 488 RHATEHHLGRARKAHY
SHAAREREE - GREFTANERAA-T=FS
SRR -

Mzt
Mk iz L - 428% - FIIE ANew York Institute of Technology-
Vancouver BUSTE T 247 o i T R1THEEE R B 20 F E IR

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F

-

2



-

Corporate Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

The Company endeavors to comply with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing a formal and
transparent procedure to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of shareholders.
The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on
the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO and Chairman) and Mr. Lin En Fu; three Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

0

(i)

(v)

(vi)

deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and financial
performance and formulating appropriate policies to manage risk exposure
associated with realising the strategies and goals of the Group;

being held accountable for the internal control system of the Company and
responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

being ultimately responsible for preparing financial accounts and discussing the
performance, financial conditions and prospects of the Company in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible manner. These responsibilities are applicable to
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Company, other price sensitive
announcements published according to the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure
of other financial information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and
information disclosable under statutory requirements; and regularly reviewing
its own functions and the powers conferred upon Executive Directors to ensure
appropriate arrangements are in place;

whilst Executive Directors, who oversee the overall business of the Company,
are responsible for the daily operations of the Company, the Board is
responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance and shareholders of
the Company, namely financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes
to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts, major
financing arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy;

the management is well informed of its powers and duties with clear guidelines
and instructions, in particular regarding situations under which reporting to the
Board is necessary and matters that require the approval of the Board before
any decisions or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company; and

the full Board meets at least four times a year, at approximately quarterly
intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when Individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if they
are unable to attend the meeting in person.
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. Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEREREE (&

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) E58(48)
(vii)  The terms of reference of the Board also include: Vi) EFENBEREERELE
(@ to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance; @ HIERBFBEEBBERKER
(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development b) BIATREREERSMAETEABNBIIRZESE
of directors and senior management; TR
(c) to review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal (0 M MERFEETEEMESHREHNEABRRESE
and regulatory requirements; R
(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to @) #IF BT MEREES NERARTER &

employees and directors; and

(e) to review the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate e BErEsFCRFADMIBERRE(REEARE)ARIH
Governance Report. [

During the year ended 31 March 2013, list of Directors and the attendance records of REEZZ—=F=A=1+—HILFE ESELEREENZE

the Directors and members of the committees: BgXEHEEE 2R
Audit Remuneration Nomination

The Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
Exg ERZEEE yHzEE REZEE RREFAS

Total Number of Meetings BRLRE 4 4 1 2 1
Number of meetings B/ AERLE
attended/eligible to attend =R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FHlExE 4 0 0 2 1
Mr. Lin En Fu MR A 4 0 0 2 1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen HEELL 4 0 0 0 0
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru STk 4 0 0 0 0
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin PREER 52 A 4 0 0 0 0
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Chu Meng Chi KAESE 4 4 1 2 0
Ms. Chan Mei Sze REFR T 4 4 1 2 0
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny Mk 1

(appointed on 17 Aug 2012) (RZZB—ZF/\A+LHZME) 3 3 0 0 0
Ms. Li Zhe RERL

(resigned on 17 Aug 2012) (RZZE—ZFNATLHEHE) 1 1 1 2 0

=
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has adopted a set of Code on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”)
which sets out the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance (“GEM Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board will continue to monitor and revise the Company Code and assess the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices in tandem with changes in the
environment and requirements under the GEM Code, to ensure the Company Code is
in line with the expectations and interests of shareholders and comply with the GEM
Code.

Except as mentioned below, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the GEM Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The GEM Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong is both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
who is responsible for managing the Board and the Group business. The Board
considers that, with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as Mr. Wong is
perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles in which he has been
acting. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the GEM Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, the Non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.6.7 and E.1.2

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent Non-executive Directors and other
Non-executive Directors should attend general meeting and have a fair understanding
of the shareholders’ opinion. Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the Annual General Meeting and also invite the chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and any
other committee to the meeting.

Non-executive Directors and independent Non-executive Directors could not attend
the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2012 due to extraordinary
business activities and unexpected events.
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EEREREE ()

Code Provision C.1.3

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded loss, net current liabilities
and significant net liabilities. Such conditions show that significant uncertainties that
cast serious doubts on the Group’s ability to sustain operation may arise. Therefore,
the Group may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in its normal
business.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has already adopted measures to
improve its overall financial position, immediate liquidity and cash flow to sustain the
operation of the Group’s business.

The Directors believes that the Group will have sufficient cash resources to meet
its capital needs and financial obligations in future operation if the measures can
bring about the expected results. Therefore, the Directors are of the view that it is
appropriate to compile these financial statements on going concern basis.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company reports to all Directors regularly to allow the Directors to fully
understand the responsibility they share in the operation and the business of the
Group. The Group arranges professional development training for all Directors to
broaden and update their knowledge and skills, constantly informs all Directors about
the GEM Listing Rules and the latest development of other applicable regulations
to ensure the Directors comply with relevant regulation and raise their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided their training
record.

The records of training the Directors received during the year ended 31 March 2013
are as follows:

Name of Directors EEHE
Executive Directors PTEE
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FElE k4
Mr. Lin En Fu MEBEE
Non-executive Directors FEHITE

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen WEELZ

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru Ilﬁﬁﬂﬁi
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin MREFT
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chu Meng Chi Ra#EE
Ms. Chan Mei Sze PREFF 2+
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny Mk 1=
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Corporate Governance Report[Conﬂnued]

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF

The Company has made appropriate arrangement regarding insurance, which covers
potential legal action faced by directors and senior staff.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Lam is the company secretary of the Company. His authorized duties
include ensuring the Board of Directors to operate effectively and fulfill its duties,
drafting agenda for the Board of Directors’ meetings and shareholders’ meetings and
ensuring the clear and effective communication among members of the Board and
also between members of the Board and the shareholders and management. During
the year, the company secretary has undergone professional training for over 15
hours to gain the most updated knowledge to facilitate his discharge of duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Membership

1. The Committee shall consist of 3 Independent non-Executive Directors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

2. The Board shall nominate one of the members as the chairman of the
Committee.

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once every year.

5. The chairman of the Committee may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 2 members of the Committee.

7. Proceedings of meetings of the Committee shall be governed by the provisions

of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

(@) implement the remuneration policy laid down by the Board;

(b) recommend to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration

of Directors and senior management;

() review the remuneration of Directors and senior management;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (8)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) HMZES (18)
Duties, powers and functions (continued) B8 - NOKBEE (&)

(d) review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection () wrl R EE S EREE RS AR I RS SRE
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal ERATAKRE MEFERERE RIS RNEER
or removal for misconduct to Directors; HE

(e) review the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should (e) Rl E B RIRA AR - ARXERARMAR
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets; AINEBENREEZ

) consider the annual performance bonus for Executive Directors, i BENTES aRBEEABER—MBEINRR
senior management, and the general staff, having regard to their HEHIFIZERRIT2EMHIZE  EZHEBEAE
achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to DETWMEERBIEA  EmrnEEeREE
market norms and make recommendation to the Board; =

(9  do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers (@ HERIEMTESFEEZEerBITEESE THED
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and Kiee - &

(h)  conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from HEESETHRIETENARAAMER TR
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitution XA BT E BRI ESK « I8R R -
of the Company or imposed by legislation.

=

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to 9. ZEERERETEBIRABITERAE -
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures (ERIER
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis. 10. ZESATFTHRNEZEZSENR -

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi, an Independent HNEE ST FEABIIFNITEEARAGELE MEMKESR
Non-executive Director, and other members include Ms. Lin Yan Jenny and Ms. Chan EM T REESL T A IERITES -
Mei Sze being Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee of the Company convened one FN - ARFIZTFNEEEEH—AeH  SIWAEEHET
meeting, and all matters concerning the determination of remuneration of the EENRREEEBHFMEE - I FNEEGE—FP =S
Directors and senior management were discussed. In addition, the remuneration BERAREENSREIRE 2 HMECR MRS - AN AEE
policies and incentive mechanism applicable to the Directors and senior management CEBRHFWHE  TRZSesatnEEeFHaEES -
and the overall remuneration system of the Group were further refined and reasonable

recommendations were made to the Board in the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RETES8

Membership ma

1, The Committee shall consist of 5 Directors appointed by the Company’s Board 1, ZEEHARAESTETHEANABESET &4
of Directors from time to time, at least 3 of them shall be independent non- =RBEB IENITES -

Executive Directors.

2. The Board shall designate one of the members as the Committee’s chairman. 2. EFeAETZEENENER—ARZESER -

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s 3. NAMERHEREABETZESGWE -
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report [Continued]

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least annually.

5. In addition, the Committee’s Chairman may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 3 Committee members.

7. Proceedings of the Committee’s meetings shall be governed by the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Duties, powers and functions
8. The Committee shall:

(@) regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify and nominate candidates to the Board;

() assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive as well as
the senior management;

(e) do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

) conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Company’s
constitution or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established in March 2012 and
currently comprises five Directors, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Hoi Wong and Mr. Lin En Fu, three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze, the chairman
of the committee is Mr. Wong Hoi Wong.

During the year, the committee convened two meetings, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy and
discharged its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also
ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 25 to 26 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(@ The Audit Committee of the Company was established in August 2001 and
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin
Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze. The Audit Committee
possesses a wealth of experience and expertise including accounting
profession, and regulatory experience both in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi.

(b) During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and has made relevant amendments to accommodate the
requirements of the GEM Code, where appropriate.

(c) The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and to maintain
good and independent communications with the management as well as auditor
of the Company.

(d) In discharging its responsibility, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

()  reviewed the draft annual and quarterly financial statements and draft
results announcements during the year; and

(i) reviewed, in conjunction with the auditor, the development of accounting
standards and assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

()  The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review the results of the
Group.

() Audit Committee is to be responsible for making recommendation to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

-
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2013, audit fees and non-audit service fees payable
to auditors amounted to HK$477,000 (2012: HK$484,000) and HK$NIil (2012: Nil)
respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control periodically to
ensure it is effective and adequate. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents during the year.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1. The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

2. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends
declared.

3. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding not less than

one-tenth of the paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the related requisition deposited at the registered office.

4, For including a resolution relating to other matters in a general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Articles of Association.

5. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, if a shareholder wish to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination which
shall be given to the Company Secretary within the 7-day period commencing
the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as
may be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time).

6. Shareholders have the right to receive corporate communications in hard
copies.
7. Shareholders whose shares held in the Central Clearing and Settlement

System (CCASS) may notify us from time to time through Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
Shareholders are provided with information about the Company, in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders, and will
regularly review this Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available
all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the website.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Registrar.

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain language
and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange
is also posted on the Company’s website immediately thereafter. Such
information includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars
and notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend the meetings. Board members, appropriate management
executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date are set out on pages 25 to 86.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 33 and in note 29 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 87 to 88.
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) Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEEERE(E)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SENEBOLHES
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the AR RIRAF ARG B (AR 1) o AND B EAE(AIHIE AR
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s RERBEEBEAARTM LHES -
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS =

The Directors during the year were: FAZESNT :

Executive Directors: BTES:

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FelEkAE

Mr. Lin En Fu MAEREE

Non-executive Directors: EHITESE :

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen WEEL L

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru MRIE+

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin MEHEE

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES :

Mr. Chu Meng Chi R EE

Ms. Chan Mei Sze PREFF T

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 17 August 2012) MLt (R-E——F/\f++HZIE)
Ms. Li Zhe (Resigned on 17 August 2012) RELT (R=ZF—=—F A +EHFE)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lin Chien BBEAARZ ARIBEAZEE 116 48] MREH LA - KEH
Hsin, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze shall retire from the board by rotation EERRESLTBRESEESTS  WHEERTEEEE
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. fFo

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EBZRBFEK

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by EEWEARNRFTABEAARBR TN EREGELEEHECETE
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory HEBRIN BB TR —FERRIEZIRIEEY -
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS ESNENER

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, no MRBF SRR MIFE 2T BB 2 X S 4N » MFIR S F WAL (r]BFRE -
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a EAMRARRRETMAHERARI L BEARREEEER
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the HEE AR ZEMEREYL -

end of the year or at any time during the year.

-
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors and Chief
Executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHE (B)

ESRIBTHAERRNACES s

RZE—=F=A=+—H0 EEEFRIETHRABREKRAF]
SHEAMBEEE (EER BB EME ST BEFRAE KA
(TBEHRBEHRD ) EXVER) 2% « BERGOREFFEE
AARRE S REIEGHIEXVEE 7 k8D EE M AR A7) [
RETZ B AR (BIEREES KA E K0 BB 1%
EFSRAMAE 2 AR R) « SURIEES KIS 4555352
HAZRRZIE Al B Mo EasE R - SURIBAIZIR
ETRBIE 61 IFENE AR RB Rz s @B T

() RATSERKIBRARMNDZEE

Type of interests and Percentage
number of shares held of the
ERENRFEROEE Company’s
Personal Other issued share
Name of director interest interest Total capital
RN
BBITRAE
EEnE BARER Hit i st ATk
(Note)
(Hi:)
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 52,950,000 - 52,950,000 3.15%
MEFT R E
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 15,086,000 15,086,000 0.90%
FHRELE

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International Investment Limited
(“ElIL"), a company owned by Intelligent Management Limited (“IML”") as the trustee of
Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust, a family discretionary trust, the objects of
which include Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31
March 2013, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By virtue
of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares.

Bfat : 3% 3t B 19 T3 bAEaglemax International Investment Limited
([EIL)) 2 B#&FEREHA © 72 A/ Inteligent Management
Limited ([IML]) BA K 1& % # 12 5t Inteligent Management
Discretionary Trust < ZsEA SN HEE + ZEEAZHZAR
FREIEFERERBULSHAMEEEE - KT —=
FZA=+—H " THNELEFBIMLEIBEHITRA - 4K
BEHF LGS - TIREEmE LSRN 2 iES -

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F

-

3-1"]



-

Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEEERE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons (not being the Directors and Chief
Executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as follows:

ESRIBTHABRNATES il (18)

(b) RATRMNKIBRARRIDZER

BABMSHEEN R-T—=F=A=+—0 SEFHE
MAR B Z B An sBADTAE T A Z iR A EAER -

BRAREEBREN  RZT—=F=A=+—R0 S=EHE
RARBREEABELEE (ERLEFRBEEAFEXV #8)
Z B ABBIR SE SR A EARIEE 5 R B RHIE XV
METR8DHEHNEARA LB Rz EmRER (BIER
IEES AR RO ARBIEORFREFRRAEE 2 e
B UREE S REE KD B 362 1R BT RN IR ATl 2 B
Atz #mRER - FRIEAIFRR EMARRAIES.61 (FAM
ERAUNCIIEE BN S A S=a

FERR IR

RZZ-—=F=A=+—H HEEHFRHEHRIIEXVEHE2
K3 EXIA T HE AR LA ERYIFE B IHRRERAFEZE
FOfArRCeE 2 AR R - AHER D RES 2 #EmE A Z A
TOFRRAEEREIETHAR)MT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held capital
he T

BE RABE 2

RREM EEME ROHE BMABED
Ms. Chu Ya Hsin Beneficial B &= 191,590,909 11.39%

Chu Ya Hsinz+

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, there was no person (not being
the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 91% of the total purchases of the Group and the purchases from
the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 51%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 99%
of the total sales for the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 32%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the year are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competed with or might compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
March 2013.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group’s strategy is to cater to the market’s demand for quality branded products
through licensed brands. Our corporate values rest in growing the presence of our
existing businesses and identifying new business and investment opportunities not
limited to our current businesses in order to deliver value to both our customers and
our shareholders. All such opportunities will continue to be diligently and carefully
evaluated by the Board with the view of delivering value to our shareholders.
We believe implementing disciplined business strategies and prudent financial
management serves this purpose by preserving the longevity and sustainability of our
businesses.

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEEERE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in August 2001 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and to provide supervision over the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to review the results of the
Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited.

BDO Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Wong Hoi Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
8 3% BB R &

Tel : +852 2218 8288 25t Floor Wing On Centre
Fax: +852 2815 2239 111 Connaught Road Central
www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE | +852 2218 8288
{#H : +852 2815 2239

EATHEP11158
JkZH>251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(ENTERERRAR)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Thiz Technology Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (thereafter referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 27 to 86, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

HEAENAEEER A ARER
(REEHERMA L2 HRAA)

NN R R HNF 27 BE 5 86 BRI EE A
BRAR(TERR]) REMBAR (TXHE [ EEE]) RE8
BHE EPHAR T =F=-A=+—BNEKEARAH
BHMRAE BEZBILEFENGAZARGER  HEER
SERRGEBRSTER  UREESHTBOREE R E M
TLRRRE o

ESMG OB RERBRIENST

BEAREFFAEMERBESHNASRINE BV BRE

ERRBBARGIINEERTE  RELTEEAFHEHR L
MG A PIERE - RETEERRRELR Eﬁ%aﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬂéxﬁ’ﬂ

MEPESHE « ARERER S B SIRROR A EAERRML (T mad
EEFFREERR TSI E) ©

% ENEHS T

AERBEMNEESREETER LG BEHRERE
BR o AZEEEREAZEE 2 RBIEHR BTRS
Brut 2 SMAIREFIEEME B - AREEI T ERARENA
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AR REBEB S ASRMNEERERETE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BWI B AR E (B)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2013 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 3(a) to the consolidated
financial statements which indicate that the Group incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$7,782,000 for the year ended 31 March 2013 and, as of that
date, the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities amounted to HK$278,000
and HK$19,953,000 respectively. These conditions as set forth in Note 3(a) indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chi Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P04945
Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEETEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE_—ZT—

=F=A=t—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P E FHET FHTT
Turnover R 5 784 15,955
Cost of sales SHEE R AR (284) (14,552)
Gross profit EF| 500 1,403
Other revenue EABA 5 30 143
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (242) (245)
General and administrative expenses —RITHER (6,975) (9,361)
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (1,095) (960)
Loss before taxation BRI &SR 8 (7,782) (9,020)
Taxation BiIA 11(a) - =
Loss for the year AEEEHE (7,782) (9,020)
Other comprehensive income Hitn 2 HE =
Currency translation differences B¥mE =g 19 94
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEE2ER R (7,763) (8,926)
Loss attributable to: LU R 518
— Owners of the Company —ARFHEEA (7,771) (8,752)
— Non-controlling interest — IR (11) (268)
(7,782) (9,020)
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEEARFEZEIKRZEE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company A VNEIE 2PN (7,748) (8,658)
- Non-controlling interest — IR S (15) (268)
(7,763) (8,926)
Loss per share: FRER : 14
— Basic and diluted (in cents) — BN EEE (L) (0.5) (0.5)

=
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wn IR LR

At 31 March 2013 R=—Z—=%=A=+—H

2013 2012
—B—=4F —E—_4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M7k FHT FHT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ] 15 24 75
Deferred development costs EIEF AN 17 - -
24 75
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 108 475
Trade and other receivables, FEURR TE % EL ot FEUCRE
deposits and prepayments Be KRB FHIE 19 508 521
Tax recoverable AR B 518 - 49
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRE 20 9,867 12,192
10,483 18,237
Current liabilities nREBEE
Trade payables FERTERIE 21 36 472
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HAibfEAFIE - BUYRS RIERTKIE 25 1,954 2,284
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENEERERE 23 1,880 2,173
Loan B 24 6,891 12,000
10,761 16,929
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (278) (3,692)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEME (254) (3,617)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a director ENEERE 22 7,699 8,573
Amount due to a shareholder FES AR FRIA 25 12,000 =
19,699 8,573
Net liabilities SEFE (19,953) (12,190)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
EMBMRIRE (8)

At 31 March2013 R=_ZE—=%F=A=+—H”

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt 5 FHET FAT
EQUITY ez

Share capital &S 26 168,274 168,274
Reserves 2] (187,944) (180,196)

Equity attributable to owners of AAREEA
the Company PEfh B E (19,670) (11,922)
Non-controlling interest iR E R (283) (268)
Total equity EREE (19,953) (12,190)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG HOI WONG
Director

LIN EN FU
Director

WERBREIN-_E—=F AT LtELESGIERKE
T - YA TIIEERRES

EE
R
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4 Statement of Financial Position
BRI &

At 31 March 2013 R=—Z—=%=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M7k FHT FHT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ] 15 - =
Interests in subsidiaries Frib BB A Rl 2 ek 16 - =
Current assets RENEE
Bank balances and cash BT RES 20 7,235 7,841
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H A FEAST FRIE 816 924
Net current assets and total assets REBEEFERAEERADER
less current liabilities 6,419 6,917
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NEPNGIE R 16 11,008 5,010
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) BEFE (4,589) 1,907
EQUITY E=
Share capital B 26 168,274 168,274
Reserves f#E 29 (172,863) (166,367)
Total equity FETSAAEE (4,589) 1,907

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of WEMBRERN T —=F A+ tELEETSIHERTE

Directors on 27 June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: T - WHTIIEERKREE
WONG HOI WONG LIN EN FU E3 EF
Director Director FEle MEER

=
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE=-T—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHTT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBKCHEERE
Loss before taxation R ATEE (7,782) (9,020)
Adjustments for: R
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BE
plant and equipment 2t Was - €)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y% - B MR - 1
Interest income FMEMA (12) (26)
Interest expenses FERAXZ 1,095 960
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWARIE 2 B8 - 180
Impairment loss on other receivables Hfth FEMGRIE 2 B 518 - 836
Provision for obsolete and slow B ROR S E R
moving inventories 43 171
Depreciation e 56 71
Amortisation of deferred development costs iR AE A B P AN 8 - 434
Operating cash flows before working EEESHH A LCERSRE
capital changes (6,600) (6,396)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERL,/(35mn) 314 (191)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, JE LSRR T % L A R W
deposits and prepayments d RIEFIER 1 1,845
Decrease in trade payables FEASTERIE R > (436) (125)
Decrease in other payables, deposits HAibEMFIE - ERRSE
received and accruals N ST OB R (134) (356)
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R B E) 2 & 27 28
Cash used in operations KEEKFARSE (6,828) (5,195)
Interest received =SS 12 26
Interest paid EFE (981) (667)
Tax refunded/(paid) ERE/(B#) R 49 (49)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEER RS THHFE (7,748) (5,885)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBEHERE
Payments to acquire property, plant REME
and equipment BV AN BN (5) 6)
Sales proceeds of property, plant SHEYE « BE KRS RIE
and equipment - B
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZB2EHESRHFHE (5) 1)
BIERIRSREAER AR 2012/13FH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

meRanER (&

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZE=ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—B—=4F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBZ2HERE
Repayment of loan BEER (5,357) (1,000)
Repayment of amount due to the spouse HEBRENESLBIE
of a director (269) (268)
Repayment of amount due to a director BEENESHRA (960) (960)
Proceeds from loan B FTSEIE - 12,000
Increase in amount due to a shareholder JES AR ER FRIBLE N 12,000 =
Net cash inflow from financing activities RMETH 2 RERAFEHR 5,414 9,772
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRBALEZEEE
cash equivalents (GRid) /0= (2,339) 3,886
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REN 2B ERBEEEER 12,192 8,234
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ReRReEEEACERSHIE
and cash equivalents 14 72
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZBEERRLSEMEER
(Note 20) (F&E20) 9,867 12,192

i&] Thiz Technology Group Limited ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 $R R B 5

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

1. GENERAL

Thiz Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Cap.22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6 December 2000. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 Ma Tau Wai Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon,

Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”) on 27 July 2001.

On 11 October 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
approved the establishment of Level 1 American Depository Receipt program for

the Company’s shares in the United States of America.

The Group engages in () trading business and (i) an information technology
industry, in which, it is a developer and provider of a range of Linux solutions
including Linux operating systems, application systems run on Linux. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 April 2012

The Group has adopted the following amendments issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective for the

current accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of

Financial Assets

The adoption of the amendments has no significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Effective date
HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (ii)
(Amendments) Cycle
Amendments to  Offsetting Financial Assets and (ii)
HKFRS 7 Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Presentation of ltems of Other (i)
HKAS 1 (Revised) Comprehensive Income
Amendments to  Offsetting Financial Assets and (iii)
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (iv)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (ii)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (ii)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (ii)
(i)

HKAS 27 (2011)  Separate Financial Statements

Effective date:

i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
i)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
iv)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to four standards which are
potentially relevant to the Group.

()  HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to present a third
statement of financial position when an entity applies an accounting
policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items in its financial statements is limited to
circumstances where there is a material effect on the information in
that statement of financial position. The date of the opening statement
of financial position is the beginning of the preceding period and
not, as at present, the beginning of the earliest comparative period.
The amendments also clarify that, except for disclosures required by
HKAS 1.41-44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third statement
of financial position are not required to be presented. An entity may
present additional voluntary comparative information as long as
that information is prepared in accordance with HKFRS. This may
include one or more statements and not a complete set of financial
statements. Related notes are required for each additional statement
presented.

(i)  HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

(i) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating to distributions to
holders of an equity instrument and to transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. Depending on the circumstances these items of
income tax might be recognised in equity, other comprehensive
income or in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle
(Continued)

(iv)  HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial statements, a
measure of total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable
segment need to be disclosed when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a
material change in the total assets and liabilities for that segment from
the amount disclosed in the last annual financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off under HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement, irrespective
of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to separate
items presented in other comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-
sale financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property,
plant and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive income is
allocated and disclosed on the same basis. The amendments will be
applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding appliance
guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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4 Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. BB IREER ([ BB FEIRE%E
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) 8l ) (48)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet (b) BfBaREB ] RIS BMISRE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of all
investee entities. An investor has control when it has power over the
investee (whether or not that power is used in practice), exposure or
rights to variable returns from the investee and the ability to use the power
over the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an investor can control
an investee while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual shareholders
to give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights are considered
in the analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e. the holder
has the practical ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly requires
an assessment of whether an investor with decision making rights is
acting as principal or agent and also whether other parties with decision
making rights are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision making authority.
The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those entities
which are regarded as being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The accounting requirements in
the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related matters are carried
forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain
transitional provisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements
about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It
also introduces new disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective of the standard is
to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to measure fair
value when it is required or permitted by other standards. The standard
applies to both financial and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three
levels in this measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS
7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date (i.e. an exit price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market.
Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial statements to assess
the methods and inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of
fair value measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be
adopted early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance and going concern basis

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, these financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group incurred a loss of
HK$7,782,000 and at the end of reporting period, it had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of HK$278,000 and HK$19,953,000
respectively. These situations indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has adopted the following
measures with a view to improve the Group’s overall financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows in order to sustain the Group to continue
its business as a going concern:

(i) On 31 March 2013, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, a director of the Company
confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand for settlement of the
advances of HK$7,699,000 would be made within 12 months from
the end of reporting period;

(i)  Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 13 June 2013, the Group
borrowed an additional loan of HK$9,000,000 from the shareholder
as mentioned in Note 25. The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at
3% per annum and the loan principal is fully repayable on 12 June
2016. The Company intends to use the loan for improving the working
capital and exploring new business opportunities of the Group;

(i)  Subsequent to 31 March 2013, the lender of the loan with accrued
interest amounting to HK$6,891,000 as detailed in Note 24 confirmed
in writing that no demand for settlement of the loan and accrued
interest would be made before 6 June 2015;

(iv)  The directors are actively exploring new business opportunities in
properties investment in order to revitalise the Group. Details of which
are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements; and

(v The directors have taken stringent cost-saving measures to
streamline the Group’s existing operations and to strengthen its
financial control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance and going concern basis
(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, if the above measures accomplish the
expected results, the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its
future working capital requirements and financial obligations. Accordingly,
the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare these financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result
if the going concern basis is not appropriate. If the going concern basis
was not to be appropriate, adjustments would have to be made to the
financial statements to reduce the value of the assets of the Group to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
35.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interest
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income s attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to exercise
control. Control is achieved where the Company, directly or indirectly, has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that are presently exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset has been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits of the expenditure will
flow to the entity, and the cost of which can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or a separate
asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Computer equipment 33%
14% - 33%
Furniture and fixtures 14% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and conditions. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
anticipated sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses after the end of reporting period or to
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. During the year, the
Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables which are
subsequently accounted for as follows:

() Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the asset have been impacted. Objective evidence of
impairment could include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial assets (Continued)
(i)~ Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iv)  Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS39.

(f) Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group
(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

(i) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(i) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iv)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

i?.'] Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13

4.

SZBEHECR (18)

(e)

()

Rl & E (18)

(i)  EERFEE

BN SRR EERMBEE#ERARNER
HREAD RN SWAZIDE - BERANXGRE
REERA ARSNGB (AER) N E
BRITERIEF R AR S WAZFIE -

(i) HIUEFEHEE
WAKE R EEEBR SR B BN ERK
WERMBEEDEEMERERET B EAE
B9 & MR ILHERIRE « ISR I ERZAS
BMAE -

REBRTENEERiERTH

() DEBES K

EERRT ERAAENIESTAR  RIFM

FIZEHNEERIRENeRARAREST
L2 SUEHETOME -

B

\

(i) #m LA

ARRRETZ RS T ERE WAASIRIR (B
BREREITRAR) LK

(i) ZEEE

ZREE(BEER) VTR FERERHK
AEtHE - SR ERER R B A FOR AR
AR E - WHEER S 2 B0 ERERAN S
4o

BERMNEERFE BB A ERHEERIAR
HEHED RN B HZI7% - BERMEZHE
B E A ERIE AR E E R R (nE
) 2 EHARRIRS MR Z R XK -

(i) IR HAE

EAKE BERRER - BUBREIE - AEE
RIFEREBALRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9

(h)

0]

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
concerned to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenses are also written off as incurred except for those
incurred for specific projects which are deferred where recoverability can
be foreseen with reasonable assurance and comply with the following
criteria: (i) the product or process is clearly defined and the costs are
separately identified and measured reliably; (i) the technical feasibility of
the product or process is demonstrated; (iii) the product or process will
be sold or used in-house; (iv) a potential market exists for the product or
process or its usefulness in the case of internal use is demonstrated; and (v)
adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion
of the product or process are available.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

(k)

M

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the products,
subject to a maximum period of five years commencing in the year when
the products are put into commercial production.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes

and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into individual entity’s functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives) are
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Income and expenses items (including comparatives)
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in translation reserve. Such translation differences, to the
extent attributable to the owners of the Company, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the foreign operations are disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Employees’ benefits
() Employee leave entitlements

Salaries, annual bonuses and paid annual leaves are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred when the services are rendered by
the employees.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(p) Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

=
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

(q) Share-based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees and others providing
similar services, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long
as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest,
the increase in the fair value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(r)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value of goods or services
received is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity is recognised.
For cash-settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair
value of the goods or services received.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect
of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled
awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 January
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January 2005.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and excludes value added tax or other sales
related taxes.

()  Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

(i)  Income from training services is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of training.

(i)  Income from software development is recognised when the Group’s
entitlement to such payment has been established which is upon the
customers’ acknowledge of acceptance after quality examination.

(iv) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BTSSR R P AL (48)

5. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of the Group’s trading income, software
development income of Linux based software and training income, after
allowances for returns and discounts and net of value added tax. An analysis of
the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows:

31 March 2013

EXRBRHEMUIA

—E-=F=ZA=1-H

EERFIEAEEE Z YA ~ Linux 345 3 A SIS FIHL
AZBREE  YNRERE  fHOERREBERRZE

B AEBEEEBREMBAZAMAT

2013 2012
—B—=£ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Turnover: R -

Trading income BIWA 588 15,679
Software development income R BERA 196 236
Training income FFIA - 40
784 15,955

Other revenue: HAUA :
Interest income MEBA 12 26
Sundry income I 18 117
30 143
Turnover and other revenue BT R H MU A 814 16,098

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions
and to assess the performance.

The Group has two (2012: three) reportable segments. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. Details of the business segments are summarised
as follows:

(@ the trading business segment that engages in the trading of computer
accessories, household goods and tea;

(b) the software development segment that engages in the development and
sales of Linux based software and hardware products; and

(c) the training service segment that engaged in the provision of training
services on Linux based software in last year.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and tax recoverable
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amount due to the spouse of a director, amount due
to a director, amount due to a shareholder, loan and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There was no inter-segment sale or transfer during the year (2012: HK$Nil).
Central revenue and expenses including finance costs are not allocated to
the operating segments as they are not included in the measurement of
the segments’ loss that is used by the chief operating decision-makers for
assessment of segment performance.
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31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NIWHS (&)
(a) Business segments (a) EBEDI
Trading business  Software development  Training services Consolidated
EREH G SE 3R &a

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“8-=f 2% “B-=f -T-—4% “8-=F T —& “B-=fF -

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TR FHT TER THT TR THET THER AT

Revenue from external customers  RESNAEE 2 A 588 15,679 196 236 - 40 784 15,955
Inter-segment revenue DEERA - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AZHAHPRA 588 15,679 196 236 - 40 784 15955
Reportable segment loss AZHAPER (1,045) (1,079) (118) (825) - (153) (1,163) (2,057)
Reportable segment assets AZBRHHEE 431 831 10 12 - 27 am 870
Reportable segment liabilities AZHRAPARE (133) (582) @ 22) - (115) (137) (719)
Other segment information: Hity pEpEH :
Interest income FIEBA 12 26
Finance costs REMAK (1,095) (960)
Depreciation and amortisation 478 k44 25 35 1 436 - 14 26 485
Unallocated depreciation ROBEHE 30 20
Total depreciation hEREHES

and amortisation 56 505
Additions to non-current assets  MNEIEABEE 5 - - - - 3 5 3
Unallocated additions AAEMIEEREEE

to non-current assets - 3

Total additions to
non-current assets ANEFRYEELSR 5 6

=

EISRIEMBERAT  2012134H 5.54-'1
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment loss, assets and

liabilities

NEPRE (18)

(b) TZ2WMNEBERE - BEKSBE2HK

2013 2012
—B—=4F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Loss before taxation BBt Al 518
Reportable segment loss A 2D EPEsE (1,163) (2,057)
Other revenue HAKA 30 143
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AR REMAD IR (5,554) (6,146)
Finance costs AR (1,095) (960)
Consolidated loss before taxation BT ATAR S 518 (7,782) (9,020)
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHATT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2|mDHEE 441 870
Tax recoverable AR EFIE - 49
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEHEEE 9,867 12,192
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 199 201
Consolidated total assets EBERE 10,507 13,312
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2/HHERE (137) (719)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEER
— Amount due to the spouse of a director —ERESRERIE (1,880) (2,173
— Amount due to a director —ENEEHE (7,699) (8,573)
— Amount due to a shareholder — B AR R FRIE (12,000) =
— Loan —Ex (6,891) (12,000)
— Others — EAfth (1,853) (2,037)
(30,323) (04,783)
Consolidated total liabilities A BERTE (30,460) (25,502)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Geographic information

During the reporting period, the Group’s operations and non-current
assets other than financial instruments (specified non-current assets) are
located in Taiwan, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
Middle East (2012: Taiwan, the PRC, the United Kingdom and the Middle
East). The specified non-current assets information below is based on the
location of assets.

Segment information of the Group by geographical locations of customer
is presented as below:

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

6. NEIRS (18)

(c)

505 BARY

RBEHE - AREZEERERBEE (ERTA

(REIRBEE) FINREE - FEARIME
(THhEDRFPR(ZZ—=F: 5% FH HER

HIR) - AT RESERBEER M AR EFREHE

5 o

BEPREME D ANEBZ DEERNT

Hong Kong Taiwan PRC The United Kingdom Middle East Others Consolidated
& a4 HEl ) TR RtihE &8
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—§-cf “3-_% -“§-=F “3-_F -%-=f _5-_F “§-=f _§-_F -“8-=F _T-_F -§-=F _F-_F “B-=F “F-_F
HK$'000  HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000  HK$000
Tén TEr TEn Thr TEx  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr TEn
Revenue from RENFEP
extemal customers —— ZHA - - M 1,440 44 13030 - 249 9 1,208 - 3 84 159%
Specified non-curent  $E3ERE)
assets BE 7 % 3 10 14 1) - - - - - - 2% 7
Information about major customers d) F2EFPER

The Group’s customer base is concentrated and there were four
customers (2012: one) with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue. In 2013, revenue from each of the three customers
in the trading business segment amounted to approximately HK$309,000,
HK$154,000 and HK$99,000 respectively, and from one customer in the
software development segment amounted to approximately HK$196,000
(2012: revenue from a customer in the trading business segment
amounted to approximately HK$12,062,000).

AEEZRFPERER HRNEZ(ZT—=F : —
Z)BEZRPRBMEAEEBRAZ10% A L RZ
T—=F REZFEBHIBEZ=-ZRFABZK
A 5 Bl 41 /4309,0005% 7T ~ 154,000/ 7t K& 99,000
BT REGRZESIE —BEPMBZRALNA
196,000/ 7L (ZT—=F : RBEEKHIE—&
BTS2 A K 512,062,000 7T) °

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RYERUN
2013 2012
—B—=4F —=——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Interest payable to a director (Note 22) FERESFE (MiaE22) 326 374
Interest payable to the spouse of a director (Note 23)  fEfTEE SRMEM S (Mi5E23) 75 88
Interest payable to a shareholder (Note 25) FERTARERAIE (BtEE25) 294 =
Other loan interest HoA & A B 400 498
1,095 960
8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. [RiRAIRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Loss before taxation is arrived BREERTE AR (GEA)

at after charging/(crediting): THIRIE
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 241 14,354
Cost of services rendered B IR AR AL A - 27
Depreciation e 56 71
Amortisation of deferred development costs I S R B P AN B

(included in general and administrative expenses) BIA—MRITERER) - 434
Minimum operating lease payments: LERE 2 HERERE :

Buildings BF 818 836
Auditor’s remuneration AN & A77 484
Staff costs BIRA

(excluding directors’ emoluments): (TRREEZHL) :

Salaries and other benefits e REAET 2,011 2,359
Pension scheme contributions RN FH IR 358 393
2,369 2,752

Provision for obsolete and slow B R HIT B R

moving inventories 43 171
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE - BEREE

plant and equipment 2 Wzs - @)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment YIE  BRE MR e - 1
Net exchange loss I B 1R F R - 19

=
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENSRITHRAEZEE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursued to the GEM Listing Rules and RBRIZER ETRARBBRREHIFE161E - EES
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ZMERENT -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
e EUR EBiRE
BEEWS HAb3gZF Bt et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FExT FExT
2013 —E—=F
Executive directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong T2 - 1,029 15 1,044
Lin En Fu MAEH - 486 - 486
Non-executive directors: FEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin M 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen EINEES 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRI5 30 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITES -
Li Zhe (resigned with effect from RE(B=-ZE——F
17 August 2012) NA+EREE) 18 - - 18
Chan Mei Sze PRIEFF 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KA 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny (appointed with effect ik (B=F—=F
from 17 August 2012) NA+tERHE
ZfT) 30 - - 30
288 1,515 15 1,818
2012 —E—-—F
Executive directors: WITES -
Wong Hoi Wong T2 - 945 12 957
Lin En Fu MR - 470 - 470
Yuan Luke Tsu REF(B=ZZ—=F
(resigned with effective = A=+ HEE)
from 20 March 2012) 48 — _ 48
Non-executive directors: IEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin R 48 = = 48
Hsieh Yi Chen BIlzES 48 = = 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT5 1A 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive directors: B IEMITES ¢
Chan Mei Sze BREFF 48 - - 48
Li Zhe Sy 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KAEE 48 - - 48
336 1,415 12 1,763
B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@ (Continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments, and neither incentive payment nor compensation
for loss of office was paid to any director during the current and prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, an option to purchase 234,995
shares in the Company granted to Mr. Wong Hoi Wong on 21 November
2001 pursuant to the share option scheme had fully lapsed as detailed in
Note 28 to the financial statements.

(b) Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals during the
year included two directors (2012: two directors) whose emoluments are
set out above. Details of remuneration of the remaining three (2012: three)
highest paid employees of the Group during the year are as follows:

I Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

9. ESKSRITHAEZME (18)

(&)

RAFEFRBEFE  HECANEEHERRAER
B E 2 25 PAREE (A 22 Rk k5
B 2 WE N T EAES -

REBEE-_Z—=F=A=+—HIFE ' RIEEK
BAER =T —F+—A=+t—AEFEIRE
A BE B AR F]234,0058 Bk 15 2 BB AR #E B AR ER AR AK
FHBHR SRR E2S o

REARAEREHFALTEEMBES(ZF—=
F:MBER) M ZFEHIW L - RFA -
AEBZHRT=H(ZF——_F: ZR)R#HER
ZWE 2 FIEHSIT

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMET 900 844
Pension scheme contributions RIKSET IR 38 33
938 877

The aggregate emoluments of each of the highest paid employees were
less than HK$1,000,000 for the current and prior years.

The aggregate emoluments of each of the members of senior management
were within the following bands:

AEERBEFERREHEER M BRHER
1,000,000/ 7T °

= RERBEKE ZMSAARE NI Z S E R

ot

2013 2012

—EB—=fF —T——F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AEL

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 57T 8 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 47T 1 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

10. PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The MPF Scheme has operated since 1 December
2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The central
pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
all retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for the pension
payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

The Group’s contributions to pension schemes for the year ended 31 March
2013 amounted to HK$373,000 (2012: HK$405,000).

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

RifE 5t Sl

AEERBERGERFESF G - REMEEERS
HEH ) 2 B B iR \E%’E%%\JIE AEE R AR S (738
HeFtEl)) - eEeFE A= ?iﬁiﬂ——ﬂ—ﬁti
e AEEREBEAFHFE R —BOLIELHE - KA
RIFEE S A SR AME L HREE IR AR - REE
AEZEETNBYEEES  EAKEZ EEDFF
B ARERRRS AL EEIHREHBREEMR
5o

RPBEE 2 ARRBE AR ZEREAZEHE MR
T2 R REAREFE - ZETEMBARIALRTE
KRB AP RERSFEERHIR - hREKREF
AN 2B RINERZMERKE  MAKEBA
FERHKIAIDZ BRNEBRAEEMRASERE -

REE—_Z—=F=A= + BIEFE @ AEBEELHR
K& 5TEIHR373,0008 7L (ZF — =4 : 405,00087T) °
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11. TAXATION

(@) Taxation for the year

11. I8

@)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax and

Taiwan enterprise income tax has been made as the Group has sustained

estimated tax losses for both years. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere,

if any, have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions

in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to loss before taxation per

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

REEBIH

R AEERMEFEEFEGTRIRESE
SH - RESEMEHRGEREM
SR - Bttty 2 BRBOEAHIA (M) TiiR
BAKERERBZ AAEER 2 RITHEIIRER

BEHELBRENE
BAEY - BERIEGFE

AN [ A T8 B AR
ZEIRIATE ¢

BEHESERFAEZRHER

2013 2012
—B—=4F —E—_4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Loss before taxation BT R E 1R (7,782) (9,020)
Taxation calculated at Hong Kong profits #216.56% (ZZ—=%F : 16.5%)
tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) ZEBNSHBEFTHE 2 A (1,284) (1,488)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT 2 s & 998 1,084
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIERRIBEB 2 BB E 286 252
Tax effect of unrecognised deductible RERAIRE R EE R 2 BB E
temporary differences 2 196
Tax effect of non-taxable items NRERIEE 2 RS2 2 (44)
Taxation for the year AREERIA - =
() The components of recognised deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as (b) RIBELEHBEE(BE) ZERKSFHAT
follows:
Unutilised Deferred
tax development
losses costs Total
KRENF IEIERA 3
HIERE 2% st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT
At 1 April 2011 R=ZZE——FMA—H 103 (103) -
Credit/(charge) for the year REEZFA($05R) (108) 103 -

At 31 March 2012 and 2013

R-B-—FR-F-=F
SHE S ] =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

11. TAXATION (Continued)

() The components of unrecognised deductible/(taxable) temporary

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

1 1 TRI,E\ (mE)

(€ AREERBAIMB, (ERM) BERHEER ZARFH N

differences are as follows: T
2013 2012
—B—=£ —T——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Deductible temporary differences ANBEREER
Unutilised tax losses REAIBEE
PRC subsidiaries B BT B A A 13,506 26,776
Taiwan subsidiary BEWBAR 11,599 11,501
Companies operating in Hong Kong REBLEZR 22,358 22,358
47,463 60,635
Provision Bt 1,901 1,834
Decelerated tax allowances TR G EE 5 5
49,369 62,474
Taxable temporary differences R EER
Accelerated tax allowances IR EE - (13)
49,369 62,461
Note: P
Deferred tax assets in respect of the deductible temporary differences have not been BRRZ RERE AR ETEHIEA 2 FERFRE A AR A]

recognised in these financial statements owing to the absence of objective evidence in
respect of the availability of sufficient taxable profits that are expected to arise to offset
against the deductible temporary differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC subsidiaries and the Taiwan
subsidiary would expire in five years and ten years from the respective year of loss
respectively. The unutilised tax losses accumulated in those group entities operating in
Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

Bz BREER - B ER YRR AR AT MR TR
ZRMERFEHITAE -

TEREENBARRBELADBRHEABRBA BN EE 2
BREEERAFARTFAHN - REBLEZARZAE
PR IR RS R AT R R B 5

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B TS sR R B 5 (48)

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

12.

13.

14.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Of the Group’s loss attributable to the owners of the Company, a loss of
HK$2,687,000 (2012: HK$2,704,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2012:
HK$NIl).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$7,771,000
(2012: HK$8,752,000) and weighted average of 1,682,737,250 (2012:
1,682,737,250) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

As the outstanding share options during the reporting periods had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share, the conversion of the share options
was not assumed in the calculation of the diluted loss per share in both reporting
periods. Accordingly, the basic and diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
March 2013 and 2012 are the same.
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1161

14.

RSB ABIGEE

TEARRIES AR ASEEEF © 2,687,0008T(=ZF
—Z4F : 2,704,000/ 7T ) B IR AR R B 1 Rk AR IR o

R

ARARAEER YRR N EEARE (ZB—=F :
BB o

skEE

REBEZEZZ—=F=A=+—HILLFE BRELXEAE
DIRARBIHEE ANELEERT,771,0008 (=2 —=
£ 18,752,000/ 7T ) K FE N B AT I T L ERK
1,682,737,250 % (= Z——4F : 1,682,737,250 % )5t & -

HRBEHAEHRTE BRESSRELAERE R
SEME - MAESEMEREBAZ SREEE IR
RS R - At #HE—_T-=FR_FT——
F=A=1T—BEFEZEEEAREEEBAER -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued]) *
AT 4R R &t (48)

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % ~ BB RR

Computer Office Furniture Motor
equipment equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
ERE BRAERE BRREE AE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHIT FHIT FHT
The Group REE
Cost: B
At 1 April 2011 R=—Z—4FMA—H 589 1,178 386 209 2,362
Additions NE - 3 3 - 6
Disposals el (29) (35) - - (58)
Written off #isH {11) (13) (10) = (34)
Exchange adjustments & 5 % 18 42 14 8 82
At 31 March 2012 R—ZE——F=A=1+—H 573 1,175 393 217 2,358
Additions NE 5 - - - 5
Exchange adjustments b 5, B 5 2 1 - 8
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=f=H=1+—-H 583 1,177 394 217 2,371
Accumulated depreciation: REE
At 1 April 2011 R=—ZE—FMA—H 558 1,149 306 209 2,222
Charge for the year REELH 16 15 40 = 7
Written back on disposals HERD (23) (33) = = (56)
Written off HsH (11) (13) © - (33)
Exchange adjustments BEE i %R 17 4 13 8 79
At 31 March 2012 R=—ZE——F=A=1+—H 557 1,159 350 217 2,283
Charge for the year AEEZH 14 9 33 - 56
Exchange adjustments e 5, B 5 2 1 - 8
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=f=H=1+-—-H 576 1,170 384 217 2,347
Carrying amount: AREE :
At 31 March 2013 RZEB-=5=ZH=+—-H 7 7 10 - 24
At 31 March 2012 R—ZE——F=A=1+—H 16 16 43 - 75

BN R BER AR

=
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_I Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B TS sR R B 5 (48)

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% - ME KRB (58)
Computer Office
equipment equipment Total
B E WAERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT
The Company P N/NCT|
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and R=-ZT——F@A—H »
31 March 2013 —T——H#=A=+—H
r=—ZE—=F=H=+—H 2 3 5
Accumulated depreciation: REE ¢
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 RZT——FMA—H
and 31 March 2013 —E——F=A=+—H
R=ZZT—=%=A=+—H 2 3 5
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 March 2013 R=Z—=f=ZH=+—H - - -
At 31 March 2012 RZZE—=—F=A=+—H - - -
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. PGB A Bl 2 &R
The Company
RAF]
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - RAKA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHH B A B FE 162,145 158,336
162,166 158,357
Less: Provision for impairment loss B REEERE (162,166) (158,357)
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NGIE ] 11,008 5,010
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are interest-free and unsecured. In U (B MBARFIEN S RERE - 2R
the opinion of the directors, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are not Ao R (FER B A B ZUEBEN SRS B 121
repayable within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and was AREE - BRSO R BIEREER ©

therefore shown in the statement of financial position as non-current.

=
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year, the directors reviewed the financial position of subsidiaries and
identified that the subsidiaries suffered continuous net losses for past several
years and these subsidiaries had net liabilities as at 31 March 2013. Accordingly,
an additional impairment loss of HK$3,809,000 was recognised for the year

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ended 31 March 2013 (2012: reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,058,000).

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013 are as follows:

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

16. PGB E LS i (1)

FN - EBRFAMBRR 2SR L HEEZEHEA
ARBEHFRESRSERIEEZSEHNBARRE
—=$=A=t+—HEAEFHE - Bt - 3,809,000% T
ZEINHEBEREREE_E—=F=A=1+—HILF
EFAER(ZE——F : BREIR(EE152,058,000/87T)

REZF-—=F=A=+—H  MBIRZFBENOT :

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
Name of company and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTEBREE E/NE|
DA BB FE R & it B A E A FELERERD L TEEK
Direct Indirect
Hi Az
Thiz Technology British Virgin US$100 100 = Investment holding
Group Holdings Islands/Hong Kong 10037T TEER
Limited RBRELES,BE
Thizlinux Inc. British Virgin US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 17T TEER
EBELRS /BB
Thizbiz Inc. British Virgin US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong = AR
EBELRS /BB
Thiz.com Inc. British Virgin US$200,000 = 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 200,00037T TEER
EBELRE /BB
Thiz.com (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,0007 7T and provision of
BIEsFIfE=ET (BA) management
BRAR services
REZER R
IRIEE RS
Thiz Design Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
Limited BB 10,0007 7T and provision of
management
services
REZER R
REEE RS

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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PA T s R P AL (48

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. GBS 2 iEs (&)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
Name of company and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTEBEREE ARQHE
AREE FE R & i B HEfEA FEERER DL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
;3 [SEE3

Thizbiz Global Trade Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Trading business
Limited BE 10,000 7T B 5%

B E 5B R AR

EEA SRR Taiwan NT$1,700,000 — 100 Trading business
FERHARAR] aiE 1,700,000 #f &5 # ECES
Y PENG

Beijing Thiz Ying Jia PRC, limited liability US$1,550,000 - 100 Trading business
International Trading company 1,550,000 37T B 5%

Co., Limited (*Ying Jia”) ~ #E ' BREETAH
(Note (i))

1 R ENRS 2 52 B
AEERAR ([A5])

(B=E)

ThizLinux Software PRC, limited liability US$1,300,000 - 100 Sales of Linux based
(Shenzhen) Company company 1,300,000 37T software and
Limited (Note (i)) R BREEAR hardware products

Bl 4 ORI BR AR 86 Linux BXRE 14
(B=E®) 7 fn

Beijing Thiz Junye PRC, limited liability US$1,200,000 - 100 Provision of
Software Co, Ltd company 1,200,0003 7T training services on
(Note () R BREEAR Linux based

b AR ERS & E software
BRAR () R Linux 814

25 RS

Note: Bt ot -

(i) The subsidiaries are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC

law.

In the opinion of the directors, the above subsidiaries principally affected the
results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets/(liabilities) of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)  _
AT 4R R &t (48)

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

17. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 17. IRFERDZE AN
The Group
AEE
HK$’000
FAT
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2011 R=ZZE——FMA—H 45,593
Written off Jli s ®)
Exchange adjustments b 3, 8 1,381
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 46,966
Exchange adjustments b 5, 3 2 336
At 31 March 2013 R=-B-—=F=HA=+-—H 47,302
Accumulated amortisation and RETHESH RO BRS¢
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMA—H 45,179
Charge for the year REFEFEZH 434
Written off Jili s ®)
Exchange adjustments T 3, 8 1,361
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 46,966
Charge for the year AEFELH -
Exchange adjustments b 5, 3 2 336
At 31 March 2013 R=-B-—=F=HA=+-—H 47,302
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March 2013 R-ZB-—=F=ZHA=+—H -
At 31 March 2012 R-ZT——F=A=+—H -
Deferred development costs represented costs incurred for development of the BERBENANIERBAEFERBEAREE 2 Lnux B HFEE
Group’s Linux based software in prior years. 2R o

=
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B T5 s R P AL (4R

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
The Group
rEEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Computer accessories, BIRG KEARRRE
household goods and tea 108 475
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as BRRRAXZFESBZHMHET :
follows:
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZERAEE 241 14,354
Provision for obsolete and slow B R ST B
moving inventories 43 171
284 14,525

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

19. [EURERIA R E fth [BURFRIA ~ 1R E K FA TR

PREPAYMENTS 15
The Group
&
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Trade receivables FEUARIR 54 216
Other receivables, deposits and HAEWGRIR - Re RIBFRIE
prepayments, net of allowance ($0BREEfE) 454 305
508 521

19'] Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued]) _

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

No interest is charged on trade and other receivables.

(@)

The average credit period granted to the Group’s customers is 90 days
(2012: 30 days). As at 31 March 2013, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice
date was as follows:

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

19. BURBRIA R H fth [BUGRIA - B K FAT R
I8 (#8)

FEU AR TR e B A U RIA AT B,

@ AEELTFEFZIHEEHAVA(ZZE—=F:
308) - R=F—=F=A=1+—H ' REEZAH
T 2 A S EEWARTE (B MR REEREE) ZRIRD
HIEUNNE

The Group
REE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 27 99
31 - 60 days 31260H 3 34
61 - 90 days 61290 H - 10
91 - 180 days 912180 H 17 -
181 — 360 days 1812360 H - -
Over 360 days 360 H A E 7 73
54 216

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$253,000 (2012:
HK$251,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the collectability of receivables is remote.
Consequently, an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$253,000 (2012: HK$251,000) was made. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Except for the above, no further allowance has been made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and provision of services.

RZZ—=F=HA=1+—H ' "% B 22530004
TL(=ZF— =4 : 251,000/ 70) 2 FE W BR B4 (& 51
EEALERE o @73 5 B FE UG8 5 R R I
FEzEFER  BEREERAZSEUMGIAZA
W [ AR o B LB 253,000 78 T (Z 2 — =4 -
251,000 7T) Z Rt RRFERE - AEELERR
ZE EAFEE A -

Br Bt ESN - WL IHE B o RIRERGE 2 EET
AU B FRIRE L — 2B

=

2012/134 4% Z-L’]

BN R BER AR



=

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B R R M EE (48

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(®)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
are as follows:

19. EUERIA R H fth [BURFRIA - 18 K FA TR
18 (#8)

(®)

ERHERBEZ BRERIRZ Rie DT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

—E—=F —=——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired N 4% 260 B SR B 30 99

Less than 1 month past due #ER D A - 34

1 to 3 months past due #EI1 =31 A 17 10

More than 3 months but not B EA 31 A LA LB A 618 A

more than 6 months past due - -
More than 6 months but not BE61E A LA BT A 12EA

more than 12 months past due - -

Over one year —FPAE 7 73

54 216

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables
during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are

EE BB ARIBUE 2 FE UK AR TR B AR 4T 3 ] R R RD 8% 2
EPER -

ERBERE B RBEALES R T & %KD
B ZRBIUTFAR RIFBERLR  BEEER
B BRNERERYEHRERNBE RAZFERD
AR R AIAR B E - BB AL % F AR R E R
1 o AR B B L% AR A (A o

EP - KRR RERE (15T REBAES
B)2EBMT -

as follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
ot L —2——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
At 1 April REA—H 251 71
Allowance for doubtful debts R - 180
Exchange adjustments RS 2 =
At 31 March R=A=+—8 253 251

2'] Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(d) The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables

Bt 35 S R P AL (48

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

19. BURBRIA R H fth [BUGRIA - B K FAT R
I8 (#8)

@ FA - EtREKRFIR 2 REEE (BB T RERE

during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are 1BED) 2BEIT
as follows:
The Group
A

2013 2012
—B—=£ —T—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 April REA—H 836 -
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE - 836
Exchange adjustments T 3, R B 12 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 848 836

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s other receivables of HK$848,000 (2012:
HK$836,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables relate to balances which are expected to be
irrecoverable as it had been outstanding for over one year and settlement
had been delayed despite various collection actions taken. Consequently,
an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of HK$848,000
(2012: HK$836,000) was made. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

RZZE—=F=HA=1+—H ' &% B 848,000/%
JL(=Z— =4 : 836,000/ 7T ) 2 E fth FE UL FRIB I
BRI AL FRE o @R E R ERKGRIERLE %
A BECDERESERKTE  ZEHBEEAH
—FLEREERDTCERAE - A ERBERET
AT E o B b1 H 848,000 L (=T — =4 -
836,000 7T) 2 2t RERFFERE - XEE W&
ZEERT R EERR o

20. RITHBERIRE

The Group The Company
AEEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —E-C—fF —E-=F —E—C—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FET FAT
Bank balances and cash RITEEFELRBRE 9,867 12,192 7,235 7,841

At 31 March 2013, included in the Group’s bank balances and cash were
amounts of approximately HK$787,000 (2012: HK$1,037,000) denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

R-T—=F=ZA=+—0 " 2E@EZHBITHAFTERS
FR#49787,0007% 7T (ZZF —=4F : 1,037,000/ 7T) AAR
BITARBDEE  WHERAFE - ARETAIEHA
BREAMERE - A - RBERBEINEBTEREREE &
ERNEEERE  ASEEEREREETTINEER
ZRITHBAREBHEMER -

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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PA T s R P AL (48

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. [EfFERIA
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TET
Trade payables FESARIA 36 472

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchase.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of reporting

NIRRT ZAEESHRBZAEEDHE -

RIREIRZ EMIRIRZ R DTN -

period:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E—_4F
HK$000 HK$’000
Tt FAR
0 - 30 days 02 30H - 84
31 -60 days 31E60H - 9
61 - 90 days 61E90H - 42
91 —180 days 91E180H - 248
181 — 360 days 1812360 H - 9
Over 360 days 360 B E 36 80
36 472
22. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 22. [EfTESFIA

The amount due to Mr. Lin Chien Hsin of HK$7,699,000 (2012: HK$8,573,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate per annum. Mr. Lin
Chien Hsin has confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand for settlement
of the amount of HK$6,070,000 and accrued interest of HK$1,629,000 would
be made within 12 months from the end of reporting period. Interest charged
during the year amounted to HK$326,000 (2012: HK$374,000).

23. AMOUNT DUE TO THE SPOUSE OF A DIRECTOR

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate calculated
on a monthly basis and repayable on demand. Interest charged during the year
amounted to HK$75,000 (2012: HK$88,000).

ﬁ'] Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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JEE {5 WR 22 58 4 2 3RI8 7,699,000 (=T — =4 :
8,573,000 7T ) DR B R IR BB HEBBFFIEGE
MEFEEUNEEHRAREEER - I EREHK
{8 A mt ' EkFE5KIE 6,070,000 8 7T & FET A
21,629,000 7T ° AN E JERFIE A 326,0008 T (=ZF
—Z=4 : 374,000 7T) °

ETEEBMRIA

JEfE 2 FRIB TR IR - IR AR AREERERGE (RAEE
LT E) RBIRERIEE - NFEEMFE A 75,0007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued]) _
AT SRR B ok (4E)

31 March2013 =ZE—=F=H=+—H

24. LOAN 24. SR
The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate quoted by a bank in ERAEET  REBS—BRTARZESREERNR
Hong Kong and was repayable commencing on the thirteenth months after SERBERERERBSE T ——F A tHE =
the loan drawdown date on 7 June 2011. Subsequent to 31 March 2013, the BMAEEZ R-_ZTE—=F=HA=+—H% ERXAZ
lender confirmed in writing that no demand for settlement of the amount of HEZR-_Z—AFNARNBRIETIS EREERE
HK$6,643,000 and accrued interest of HK$248,000 would be made before 6 6,643,000 % 7T & FE&TF1|.E. 248,000 T ©
June 2015.
25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. Efth[ETRRIE - EBIRERESTRIANE
AND ACCRUALS AND AMOUNT DUE TO A fTAXERMIA
SHAREHOLDER
The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest bearing at 3% per MR RRBEAERE  BREFXKI%TE - A&
annum. The principal amount of HK$12,000,000 (2012: HK$NIil) is repayable on 12,000,000 (=2 ——F : TFT)BAR_T—01F
1 June 2015, whereas the accrued interest of HK$294,000 is repayable on 1 SNA—HEZE - MERTFIE 294,000 THAR - —=4F
June 2013, which is included in other payables, deposits received and accruals. ANA—RHEZE  SFAZHEMEMNKIE  BRIES RIER
Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$294,000 (2012: HK$NIl). FIB o FAHRABE294,0008 T (=2 —=F : TF
JT) ©
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRI
Number of shares HK$’000
igng S 4E| FHET
Authorised: &'E :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at Rn= —FMA—HB - ZE——FK
1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 2013 —T—=F=A=+—H
BFRREEOA BT 2 TR 4,300,000,000 430,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE—FHA—H ZT——FK
at 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 2013 —E—=f=A=+—H
BREEOC.1 BT Rk 1,682,737,250 168,274
27. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 27. QIR RR B A AR
Number of shares HK$’000
BRHEE FExT
The Group and the Company REBRAATE
Authorised: ERE
Non-voting convertible preference shares RZBE——FMWA—A  —F—Z=F
of HK$0.1 each at 1 April 2011, k= "*:E*H*+*Eﬂ%ﬁ@
31 March 2012 and 2013 0.1 B2 EREREIRRE AR 900,000,000 90,000
The Company had no outstanding issued convertible preference shares as at 31 R-IBE——FR-_FT—=F=A=+—H ' ARREXR
March 2012 and 2013. I E BT AHARE LR -

=
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 5 August 2004, the share option
scheme adopted on 6 July 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated with
immediate effect provided that options which have been granted and remain
outstanding shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue and the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
has adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) pursuant to a
resolution passed on the same date.

The purpose of this New Scheme is to motivate the eligible participants for their
contributions to the Company and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the
Company. Eligible participants of the New Scheme include any employee,
proposed employee (including any executive and non-executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries), adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, customer
and supplier of any member of the Group.

The New Scheme shall remain in force for ten years from 5 August 2004
during which the directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible
participants.

The maximum number of shares available for issue under options which may
be granted under the New Scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of the above
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

If options are granted to a connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) or his associates, the granting of such options will be subject to all
independent non-executive directors’ (excluding independent non-executive
director who is a grantee) approval; where options are proposed to be granted
to a connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates which will result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted or to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person under the New Scheme in the past 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant (1) exceeding 0.1% of the
total issued shares for the time being; and (2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, the granting of such options will be subject to approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company taken on a poll. All connected
persons will abstain from voting (except that any connected person may vote
against the resolution).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 5 days from the date on which the option is granted. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors and shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant and the directors may provide restrictions
on the exercise of the option during the period an option may be exercised.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the New Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors at their
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; or (i) the nominal value of a share.

No option was granted under the New Scheme during both years. The options
granted under the Old Scheme were to a director.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of reporting
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28. EERRiEst 8l (18)

BB - ARAAIN BT T AR AMERZIAR
HZHE - BRETNERLE BEFTRE 2 AKA -
FREBEREZTEHRERRE  ETEBEERE
B R T4 - EF A HRBREN AT IR 2176
TEHFR

BRI &I TR 2 AR E B 2 SR REE R
EEERRRBRE  EZEBRITBERNAT=E2&
=& ()REH BB (WARRSR) B PT B IRE
PR Tn(E ¢ (i) BRI B HIRT R R 5 A B RS A
B R P I 8 ¢ Sk (i) B EfE

{85 2 A3 AR AR AT IR R AR RIS AR - RIBER ST
2 ER—RESRRHBARE -

BBRER TRE ARNRBAQR KRN - Bk
RN AEA T 458 AR S S R ARG R E -

AR HAZR 120 R e 70 B 1 AR T 2 R A 2 (5K

period:
2013 2012
—EB-—=F —T——4F
Exercise Exercise
price Number price Number
Date of grant Exercise period per share of options per share of options
REBH 1TEERAR BRITEE BRERE FRRITEE RS E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
21 November 2001 30 June 2002 to
== == 29 June 2012
—ZEEFRA=tTHZE
—E——FAZ+ANAE - - 2.2 234,995

All the outstanding share options of 234,995 granted under the Old Scheme as
at 31 March 2012 had fully lapsed on 29 June 2012.

RZE——F=A=+ BREEBREFTIRLEZ
234,995 P M ARITEBBREER T ——F A=+ NH
BEURK -
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29. RESERVES
The Group
(@) Capital redemption reserve

The reserve represents the amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
Company’s shares cancelled arising from repurchased shares in prior
years.

(b) Special reserve

The reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM.

(c) Translation reserve

29.

REE
(@) BEAEMIHMRE

ZREBERERARARNBEFEEE ZEHED
BINEEZ S

(b) ‘ReRfEE

KRl REA R AR EEEREHEARBARMRT
BIER EMRIBEHERBEASEREKERE R
B EE 5

(€ MEifEE

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the fE N B A BREGINEBM B R mEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is ZIEH ZRE o ZREERME4mMFTEETBURRE ©
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4(m).
(d) Reserves of the Company d AREZFEE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium Reserve losses Total
R R E BEXEE G RitEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FAT FAT FHAT
(Note 29(a))
(Fft 5% 29(a))
Balance at 1 April 2011 RZE——FMB—H 2 &R 28,060 84 (193,865) (165,721)
Loss and total comprehensive income EERANFE2E RSB
for the year - - (646) (646)
Balance at 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—HEK
at 1 April 2012 —E-—FMNA—Bz#&EH 28,060 84 (194,511) (166,367)
Loss and total comprehensive income EERAFEEARZRE
for the year - - (6,496) (6,496)
Balance at 31 March 2013 —=F=ZA=t+—Hz&% 28,060 84 (201,007) (172,863)
The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 March 2013. Under the R-ZE—=F=F=+—H ARRLEAEDKF
Companies Law (Cap. 22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the B RERSHEEATNE(— N N—FEFEIF LM FE22
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the T RirARER])  BEEZESIKREBHE - ARQA
Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the dividends BEAEERRERPIRH ER  ROBERIDIRTA
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its ANAIMRE o

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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30. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 30. KETASHIE
As at 31 March 2013, the Group and the Company had outstanding R-ZEBE—=F=ZA=+—H8  AEBRAQAHREFZ
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of buildings, TR B ETHE R MABITAE  FIHIEWOT
which fall due as follows:
The Group The Company
rEEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F —E-=fF —T—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHT FAT
Within one year —FR 312 395 - -
In the second to fifth years F_EZERF
inclusive (BiEEREME) 93 52 - =
405 447 - =
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the office CERERBIREAS lﬁvt PREYERBTESEN
premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to e MOFHAH—ZEZ=F  SAXMNEEHESE -
two years with fixed monthly rentals.
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. ABE
References are made to an announcement on 13 March 2006 in relation to a ZIRBRZZETERF=ZA+=ZBREZAMH - BREAR
claim of service commission of HK$3,750,000 (RMB3,000,000), together with Al—EHENBARARE —ZRIEE R AR BHZER
the interest of HK$284,000 (RMB227,000) by an ex-employee of Ying Jia, a 1/ & 3,750,000 % 7T ( A R # 3,000,000 7T ) # & A1 &
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, against the Company. The ex-employee 284,000 7T ( AR #E 227,000 7T) © FEEBR #I5% A Rl E
has obtained a judgement in his favour in the court of the PRC (the “Ruling”). BB ((&E]) -
The Company’s legal advisers confirmed that, under the laws of Hong Kong and ARNEEZBERER  BEEERFASHSEE  BE
the Cayman lslands, there is no statutory mechanism for judgement made by FEAREE # B P BUABT FTEL M HR AT R B A A S
the Courts in the PRC to be enforceable either in Hong Kong or Cayman Islands. HEWIT - ARRIEFHRE - HERTAINITNIFSR
The directors of the Company believe that the enforceability of the Ruling is MAEBHBERBRRAEN - UL ERZPRELZ
doubtful and the Group is not liable to the claim. No provision has been made in RISk A B BRI SRR AE L B -
these financial statements in respect of any contingent liabilities arising from this
claim.
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BIEALTRS

Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:
(a) Balances with related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 22, 23 and 25 to the financial statements.
(b) Interest charged by related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 22, 23 and 25 to the financial statements.

EAEMEALR S RESRIAT -
(a) BRABATZEH
HERIEIRERM 22 - 28 & 25 N#HKEE °
(b) BRIEATWEZHR
HERIEIRERMFE 22 - 28 K& 25 N#HKEE ©

B RHASE AR AR 2012/13F
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32. BRAIEALTXR % (&)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 9 to the financial
statements.

The remuneration of other key management during the year was as

(c) EBEEASZMS

E=Me 2 FHEEN I BERAMEQ -

FA - AMIEERE M0

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Short term benefits pSEEER 900 844
Post-employment benefits BIREH] 38 33
938 877

The directors are of the opinion that balances with related parties and
related interest charged by related parties which also constitute connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules were carried out in the normal
course of business of the Group and conducted on terms no more
favourable than normal commercial terms.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)  toensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders;

(i) to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and

(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and acquisitions.

There is no change in the Group’s capital management objectives from prior
years.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall financing
structure. As set forth in Note 3(a), the Group has adopted several measures
with a view to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

EE)"] Thiz Technology Group Limited ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal

course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

currency risk.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 2 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 50.2%
and 87.2% (2012: 0.0% and 80.0% respectively), of the trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from related parties and other parties to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term including the measures
as set forth in Note 3(a) to the financial statements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
current rates at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay.
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34. 5 R IREIR

AEESRMTARNARRBRRETELZEERRABE

EEkE -

nBESER - MEEREEERE

(a) EERMR

(b)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 34. MERBEIE (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) MENEEEMR (58)
Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or on Over 1
amount cash flow demand year
EHESES: 35 R—FR
IREE HREeREHE RIRER —FpE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT FHET FAT
The Group REH

2013 —ET-=F
Trade payables FESRRIA 36 36 36 -
Other payables H A e~ FRIE 1,597 1,597 1,597 -
Amount due to a director ERESFIE 7,699 8,002 - 8,002
Amount due to the spouse of a director N EERERE 1,880 1,948 1,948 -
Amount due to a shareholder JES AR R FRTE 12,000 13,080 360 12,720
Loan B 6,891 7,332 7,332 -
30,103 31,995 11,273 20,722

2012 =&
Trade payables FERTERIE 472 472 472 -
Other payables H A fERTFIR 1,892 1,892 1,892 -
Amount due to a director FENEZESFHIA 8,573 8,925 - 8,925
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENESRRBHIE 2,173 2,254 2,254 -
Loan B3 12,000 13,200 - 13,200
25,110 26,743 4,618 22,125

The Company AAH

2013 —E-=F
Other payables H b FESTFRIE 816 816 816 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NEIE/SE 11,008 11,008 - 11,008
11,824 11,824 816 11,008

2012 —F——4F
Other payables H AL FRIR 924 924 924 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANEIEEPNGIE ¢ 5,010 5,010 = 5,010
5,934 5,934 924 5,010

=
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings with variable
interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group monitored
by management at the end of reporting period.
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34. B REIREIR (1&)

(c) MIZREMR

AEE 2 FERREERRS RIBFRS B2
%o WIBAE B2 BRATERE RS A
EER -

ATAIHE R EERAREN RS R MEFS -

The Group
EH
2013 2012
—E-—=F — T4
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERFI=E R A=
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Variable rate borrowings EEII B =E
Loan B 5% 6,643 5% 12,000
Amount due to a director B EERIE 5% 6,070 5% 7,030
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENEEREHRE 5% 1,370 5% 1,640
Amount due to a shareholder FE(H IR FRIE 3% 12,000 = =
Total variable rate borrowings FENRE B4R 26,083 20,670

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 22, 23, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 20183, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after taxation and accumulated losses
by approximately HK$162,000 (2012: HK$85,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected by the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the beginning of reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at the end of
the reporting period. The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

AEBER 2R EERAETERERM F22
23~ 24 K 25 NIHEE ©

R-—ZT—=F=A=+—8 EMAEELHBEHT
BRIERT - EEHFIR— M EF T#E100E
E2 BeEBASERKABRER RIS
hn/ R A #9162,0007% 7t (=T — = 4F : 85,0004
T o —MFIE L TRIGE R AR N2 M
HEEARE -

A ERBRRE DT ERRA RSB E RS B
EMEE  WEEARANREARMEY HITAE
FOETA S BT A Z M X - Esk T 78100184
HEEEEHEE T AFEREHRARHFIx
AR EEH 2L - AREER _F— _F&HA
Rl EAEEITOHT
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Currency risk

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the Group’s transactions
are carried out in the respective functional currencies of the group entities.

(e) Fair values estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial position and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions
and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of significant accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

Going concern basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern when preparing the financial statements. The Group is dependent upon
the successful outcome of the measures as set forth in Note 3(a) in order to meet
the Group’s future working capital and financing requirements.

In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate,
management takes into account all available information about the future, which
is at least, but is not limited to twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

If the Group were unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments relating to

the recoverability and classification of recorded asset and liabilities amounts may
need to be incorporated in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Impairment losses for trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the

35
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customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher than expected 45 o
and could significantly affect the results of future periods.
Write down of inventories HisHF S

Management assesses the net realisable values of inventories based on EHEEENE R REREMESHR B AT FE ] &R %
B - 2AEHXBEREDERARABREZERR - K

KES LR - WEHERE(EH AR ©

prevailing and expected market conditions. Provision is made when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
realised. The assessment requires the use of estimation.

36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL  36.
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

ERMEERERNEENBIGRE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and REBRARBR-E—=FRK_FE——F=A=1+—

financial liabilities as recognised at 31 March 2013 and 2012 may be categorised HERzepmEERSRB B2 RAEI BN ¢

as follows:

The Group The Company
REE NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F —E-—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including %S5 AT 8 2 Bk
bank balances and cash), R EWGRIA
at amortised cost (BRERITEFERRS) 10,290 12,630 7,235 7,841
Financial liabilities SEas
Financial liabilities, REBHKATEZ
at amortised cost TRAE 30,103 25,110 11,824 5,934
BIERIRSREAER AR 2012/13FH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B TS sR R B 5 (48)

31 March2013 =F—=%=HA=+—H

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@)

On 14 May 2013, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor”) pursuant to
which the subsidiary conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest in a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “Target
Company”) owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The
consideration for the Proposed Acquisition will be satisfied by the issue and
allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the nominal
value of HK$0.1 each to the Vendor. The Target Company has a wholly-
owned subsidiary in the PRC which is principally engaged in property
investment in Shanghai, the PRC. Details of the Proposed Acquisition were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 May 2013.

On 13 June 2013, the Group entered into a loan agreement to borrow an
additional loan of HK$9,000,000 from a shareholder as mentioned in Note
3(a)(ii).

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 27 June 2013.
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Financial Summary  _|
BB E

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the NTRASEABEREAFEMAERAEFREAREERE

#RE
Group, prepared for the last five years, as extracted from the audited consolidated BZHE e AEE 2 KERGETEHRER - NEEI

financial statements of the Group. This summary does not form part of the audited FERRE AL B RGRR 2 AR 2B ©
financial statements.

RESULTS S
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
=2-=% === =H==4 T —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT T FHTT FHTT
Turnover == 784 15,955 16,636 7,036 7,555
Loss from operations L SR (6,687) (8,060) (7,073) 9,771) (25,183)
Finance costs BE AR (1,095) (960) (635) (1,178) (1,724)
Loss before taxation Bt Al ES 1R (7,782) (9,020 (7,708) (10,949) (26,907)
Taxation I8 - - - - 3,357
Loss for the year AEEERE (7,782) (9,020) (7,708) (10,949) (23,550)
Attributable to: LA AL :
Owners of the Company VN/NCIEZE DN (7,771) (8,752) (7,708) (10,949) (23,550)
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR RS (11) (268) - - -
(7,782) (9,020 (7,708) (10,949) (28,550)
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_I Financial Summary (Continued)

PAT R (48)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
At 31 March
R=A=+—8
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
== == T4 —TTE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHT FT
Non-current assets FERBEE 24 75 554 1,014 1,836
Current assets MBEE 10,483 13,237 12,100 16,928 15,864
Deduct: S
Current liabilities nEBE 10,761 16,929 5197 7,912 39,651
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (AR BEFE (278) (3,692) 6,903 9,016 (23,787)
Total assets less current BWEERTEBARE
liabilities (254) (3,617 7,457 10,030 (21,951)
Deduct: Dok
Non-current liabilities EMEALE 19,699 8,573 10,721 17,238 -
Net liabilities BEFE (19,953) (12,190) (3,264) (7,208) (21,951)

=
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